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Q1 Page 24, num ber 5: Can the stipend  work experi ence compone nt be pro vided in-hou se 
by the bidd er?  

A1 Yes. 

Q2 Page 12, section 3. 1: Can t he bidd er d irectly empl oy Parent  Partner s? 

A2 It is preferred that the sub-contractors identify parent partners in the community. In instances 
where these organizations have difficulty locating these individuals, Parent Partners may be 
employed by the primary agency, but those Parent Partners still must meet the criterion 
explained in section 4.0 of the RFP. 

Q3 Page 17, num ber 3: Do bidders  need to list a specific  curr iculum to  be used at time of 
appli cation /in the n arrati ve? 

A3 No, the CCMI Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT) curriculum will be identified and 
designated after awardees have been chosen and after their CCMI teams have completed 
the Community Connections for Youth (CCFY) training. 

Q4 Page 17, paragraph 2: Could  you clari fy whether or  not  the bidder can directly  empl oy 
Credible  Messengers? 

A4 Per section 3.1 of the RFP, credible messengers must be an employee of the sub-contractor 
so it is required that applicants would reflect this in their proposals. 

Q5 Page 17, paragraph 3: Please clarify  whether or  not t he bidd er should in clude  the  

OCFS Case Manager  in the progr am bud get. 

A5 Community Multi-Services Office (CMSO) personnel are New York State employees and 
are not funded by this grant opportunity. 

Q6 We need to pro vide documentation that  we are an authorized volun tary agency.  What 
exactly should be uplo aded for this  question?  We have operating c ertific ates for 
various  faciliti es, but is  there  a single  document  we should  pro vide?  We have 
mater ial about  our n on-pro fit status as well as our  990 and Charities Registration, but 
that is  all in Grants Gateway. 

A6 See Section 3.1 ï Minimum Qualifications and Section 5.4 ï Proposal Content. For the 
purposes of this RFP, we define a voluntary agency as a not for profit corporation approved 
by OCFS to either operate a residential foster care program or to operate a foster family 
boarding program. Therefore, please upload your OCFS issued certificate that authorizes 
your agency to operate such programs. 

Q7 There are 3 types of  services for t he pro gram ï credib le messenger,  parent  partner 
and work-based learning.  Are all  youth who parti cipate in the  program to be  involved 
in all  3 aspects?  

A7 No, the services that will be employed for each youth will be based on that youthôs individual 

needs and determined by the youthôs support team. See section 4.1 of the RFP. 

Q8 The RFP indi cates  there is the init ial train ing.  Would t hat be for everyone on t he CCMI 
team (CMs, PPs, Progr am Manager  and wor k-based learning  coordinat or)?  Where will 
that training be  pro vided? We need to  know as we develop our  bud get and determ ine 
if  we will  need to in clude lodging and tra nspor tation.  

A8 The ñinitialò or ñannualò training consists of the following: (1) a 5-Day Credible Messenger 
Boot Camp; (2) a 2-Day Parent Peer Coach Training; (3) a 3-Day Alternative-to-Incarceration 
(ATI) Training Institute; (4) a 4-Day Restorative Justice Training; and (5) a 3-day immersion 
in New York City. Grantees should include the costs of sending a 5-person team to most 
trainings, although the number of persons in attendance may vary. Grantees should assume 
that CMs and PPs must attend all trainings. The Program Managers and Work-Based 
Learning Coordinator may attend some trainings. Grantees should assume that the 3-Day 
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 Immersion will be provided in NYC. The other trainings will be held in an area of New York 
state that is optimal to balance travel time and costs among the 4 regions served by the 
initiative. OCFS recommends that applicants budget approximately $25,000 towards training- 
related travel each year, with slightly more budgeted for the first year to ensure that all 
personnel receive the initial training. 

Q9 Is the annual tra ining  described on p age 31 of t he RFP in  addition to this initi al 
tra ining?  

A9 The annual training described on page 31 of the RFP is the same as the initial training in 
Year One. In subsequent years, grantees should continue to budget a similar amount for 
training-related travel to cover the cost of (a) training the cost of new staff when there is 
turnover; (b) additional training for all staff; and (c) other initiative travel and convenings. 

Q10 The RFP indi cates  that we should  allocate up to $25,000 for t he annual tr aining.  Does 
that amoun t, for the fir st year, include  the initi al tra ining as well? 

A10 Yes, the $25,000 is an approximate total that should cover all first-year training needs and 
may vary based on team composition and training locations. The training costs will vary over 
the course of the CCMI contract. 

Q11 Where will the annu al trainings  be held?  How long  will each tra ining l ast?  We want to 
be sure  we have sufficient  fun ds for tran spor tation and accommodation costs  as 
needed.  

A11 The ñinitialò or ñannualò training consists of the following: (1) a 5-Day Credible Messenger 
Boot Camp; (2) a 2-Day Parent Peer Coach Training; (3) a 3-Day Alternative-to-Incarceration 
(ATI) Training Institute; (4) a 4-Day Restorative Justice Training; and (5) a 3-day immersion 
in New York City. Grantees should include the costs of sending a 5-person team to most 
trainings, although the number of persons in attendance may vary. Grantees should assume 
that CMs and PPs must attend all trainings. The Program Managers and Work-Based 
Learning Coordinator may attend some trainings. Grantees should assume that the 3-Day 
Immersion will be provided in NYC. The other trainings will be held in an area of New York 
state that is optimal to balance travel time and costs among the 4 regions served by the 
initiative. OCFS recommends that applicants budget approximately $25,000 towards training- 
related travel each year, with slightly more budgeted for the first year to ensure that all 
personnel receive the initial training. 

Q12 Is the annual tra ining  design ed specifi cally for the credible  messengers and parent 
partner s?  The RFP indi cates  that  we should bud get for up to 5  peopl e.  Since we are 
going to  propose  3 CMs and 2 PPs, that means the  prog ram manager  will  be unable  to 
parti cipate. Is that corr ect?  

A12 The annual trainings are designed primarily for Credible Messengers and Parent Partners to 
learn the CCMI model and to deliver it with fidelity. OCFS assumes an average of 5 team 
members attending the trainings. However, the Program Manager, the Work-Based Learning 
Coordinator, and other team members are also welcome to attend the trainings, as long as 
there is sufficient space in the trainings for them to do so. Applicants that anticipate sending 
more than five people to a training should budget accordingly. 

Q13 We unde rstand t hat we are to de vote $100,000 of t he $450,000 bud get for work  based 
exper iences, youth developm ent  oppor tuniti es and incentives.  Are these fun ds 
exempt from t he discretiona ry budget u sed to c alculate our  MWBE amoun ts? 

A13 No, just because spend must be used for a specific purpose does not make it exempt. If 
portions of the budget are deemed discretionary and there is MWBE availability, then it 
should be assessed for goals. Any portion that could be discretionary MWBE (i.e., 
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 incentives) should be considered in the calculations while any portion that can't (i.e., 
salary) would be considered non-discretionary but the overall amount is NOT exempt from 
consideration. 

Q14 Is there  is  a list or clearinghouse  for gr assroo ts org anizations  we can work  with f or 
subcon tractors? We want  to be sure  to  work  with t he most appropri ate groups in the 
region.  

A14 OCFS has no knowledge of the existence of such a list. 

Q15 Can Cred ible  Messengers  and Parent  Partners  be part-time  employees? 

A15 Yes, as long as all goals and outcomes stated in section 4.0 of the RFP are achievable. 

Q16 Can the Pro ject Manager be  a part-time  employee? 

A16 Yes, as long as all goals and outcomes stated in section 4.0 of the RFP are achievable. 

Q17 If of fice locations are within C MSOs, will there  be an expectati on of p ayment  for r ent, 
utiliti es, internet, te lepho ne etc.?  

A17 Where practical, the co-location of the CCMI team in CMSO offices will be highly 
encouraged. There is no expectation of payment for any expenses associated with the co- 
location and appropriate use of state resources. 

Q18 Is the mon th-long initi al tra ining h eld in New York  City and is  there  an expectat ion of 
prim ary agenci es to reimbur se Credible  Messengers  and Parent Partners  for tra vel, 
hotel and f ood?  

A18 The RFP states on page 25, ñprovide a plan for how all CCMI personnel will be made 
available for a month long Credible Messenger/Parent Partner training commencing after the 
contract is finalized.ò This language is not accurate. There will be five trainings totaling 
approximately 21 days during the initial year of the contract, but these will not happen 
consecutively or in the same month. They will most likely be spread out over the first year of 
the initiative. At least one training will be held in NYC (the 3-Day Credible Messenger 
Immersion) but the other trainings will be held in a location in New York State that minimizes 
travel time and costs for the four regions included in the initiative. Primary agencies should 
plan to cover the cost of travel, hotel and food for all personnel who are required to attend. 
trainings. Q19 Is on-going tra ining also held in New York  City, if so, how of ten and is  there an 
expectation of  pr imary agenci es to r eimb urse Credible Messengers  and Parent 
Partners  for tr avel, hotel and f ood?  

A19 Some of the ongoing trainings will be held in NYC, but the majority trainings will be held in a 
location in New York State that minimizes travel time and costs for the four regions included 
in the initiative. Primary agencies should plan to cover the cost of travel, hotel and food for all 
personnel who are required to attend trainings. 

Q20 What is  the on-call expectation of  Credible  Messengers and Parent  Partner s? 

A20 Due to the inherent nature of these positions it is the expectation that Credible Messengers 
and Parent Partners are available to provide support and respond to crisis situations at all 
hours. 

Q21 According to S ection : 3.1 Minimum  Qualification s: ñAll  bidd ers  must be an authoriz ed 
and certified  volun tary agency by New York State  OCFD and oper ate as a volun tary 
agencyò 
Our Non-for-Profit  agency receives fun ding from N YS OCF.  Does that m eet the 
eligibi lity  crit eria  as a CCMI bidder? If no t, what doe s? 

A21 See Section 3.1 ï Minimum Qualifications and Section 5.4 ï Proposal Content. For the 
purposes of this RFP, we define a voluntary agency as a not for profit corporation approved 
by OCFS to either operate a residential foster care program or to operate a foster family 
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 boarding program. All bidders must be an authorized & certified voluntary agency by NYS 
OCFS and operate as a voluntary agency. Please upload your certification to the Grants 
Gateway to ensure it is attached to this proposal. 

Q22 On page  #17 of  the RFP, the CCMI model  speaks to t he struct ure of t he CCMI team and 
how they  should op erate through  sub-contractors. However, page #18 of t he CCMI 
Bidders  Conference presentation s tates  OCFS will ñcontract with  a lead agency  that 
has the ability to empl oy Cred ible  Messengers.  My questions are, can one  agenc y, 
with t he existing capacity, imp lement  the model  in full  witho ut a sub-contractor; or  is 
sub-contracting m andatory? 

A22 Per section 3.1 of the RFP, credible messengers must be an employee of the sub-contractor 
so it is required that applicants would reflect this in their proposals. 

Q23 May the stipend p art  of  the Work  Based Learning be  pro vided in-house  by the Primary  

Agency? 

A23 Yes. 

Q24 In measuring ou tcomes, are we going to set up dif ferent  deliverable  systems  in ord er 
to  monitor,  on a  quarter ly basis, how tho se outcom es are going to be m et?  

A24 The contract will be a line item based budget with outcome targets to measure performance 
as outlined in the RFP. 

Q25 How are we going to  determ ine where Credible  Messengers wil l be located?  

Parti cularly, the question is  about  Long I sland,  which is, by name, a long i sland, and 

there are kids in and dispersed thr ough out  the island.  

A25 Credible Messengers location will be determined by OCFS placement data. The target 
areas or neighborhoods will be those that historically produce the largest number and the 
most high-risk youth in need of re-entry services and supervision. See section 4.1 of the 
RFP. 

Q26 There will  be times when there  will  be confidential or  sensiti ve inform ation or  

under standing that may come up again st OCFS Poli cy and Pro cedure.  What is the 

plan for h ow we will dir ect our C CMI part ners  to hand le those  kinds  of  situations?  

A26 Protocols will be developed in a collaborative manner, with technical assistance provided by 
CCFY staff, at each location specific to the reporting of violations, confidential and/or 
sensitive information. 

Q27 Who are the Volun tary Agenci es in perspecti ve areas? 

A27 This is contingent on which voluntary agencies choose to apply to this funding opportunity. 
OCFS cannot answer this question at this time. 

Q28 There is, in our  presentation, PowerPoint,  there is an allusion to a Cogniti ve 
Behavior al Therapy curri culum b eing u sed.  Do we have to name  that curr iculum in 
the propos al?  

A28 The CCMI CBT curriculum will be developed after awardees have been chosen and after 
completion of CCMI training. 

Q29 Is there  a caseload t ime-frame  for  youn gsters  who are part of  a CCMI team?  Being 

serviced by a CCMI team?  

A29 There are no timeframes associated with this process and will vary from youth to youth 
based on individual needs and engagement. See section 4.1 of the RFP. 

Q30 How is a Volun tary Agency defined?  
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A30 See Section 3.1 ï Minimum Qualifications and Section 5.4 ï Proposal Content. For the 
purposes of this RFP, we define a voluntary agency as a not for profit corporation approved 
by OCFS to either operate a residential foster care program or to operate a foster family 
boarding program. 

Q31 Given the fa ct that  we are talking about  regional  catchm ent  areas, and t hose  

catchm ent  areas are quite l arge, that in volve multiple  coun ties and t he distances are 

probab ly large, if  we have a youn gster  who is  in one of our ou tlying areas, will CCMI 

teams possib ly be able  to service that  youngste r, or be  expected to s ervice that 

youngster?  Be expected to service that  youn gster.  

A31 OCFS understands that the regions cover broad areas and is expecting bidders to 

provide proposals that encompass providing service to OCFS youth in communities that 

have the highest concentration of OCFS-placed youth. Proposers do not have to 

currently cover all localities where outlying OCFS placed youth may reside. As 

populations may change it would be expected that the vendors accommodate such 

shifts. 

Q32 There are bonus  poi nts b eing gi ven for B2H pr oviders; can th ose bonus  poin ts be 

given to organiz atio ns who are also OMH waiver pr oviders? 

A32 No, the B2H bonus points noted in section 5.0 will only be awarded to B2H providers. 

Q33 Can larger agencies also, in addition to ot her sub-contractors, empl oy credible 
messengers  themselves? 

A33 Per section 3.1 of the RFP, credible messengers must be an employee of the sub-contractor 
so it is required that applicants would reflect this in their proposals. 

Q34 Is the PowerPoint  available electro nically? 

A34 The PowerPoint will be posted with the Q&As. 

Q35 If ther e are grassroo ts org anizations  identifi ed by the prim ary agency, but  that 
grassroo ts organization actually doesnôt have ind ividu als  who meet that cri teria, can 
the pr imary agency help the sub-contractor h ire fol ks who meet the  crit eria? 

A35 Yes. 
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Request  for  Prop osals  
 

 
 

Div ision  of Juveni le Just ice and Oppo rtun ities for  Youth  
 

Office of Community  Partners hips  
 

Communi ty Credible  Messen ger Ini tiative 
 

 
 
 
 

June 1, 2018 CCMI Bidders Conference 
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Introd uction  
 

 
 
 
 
 

This Bidders Conference is being delivered in person and 

via Webinar. 
 

Å All participants, please hold your questions, including typed 

questions, until the question and answer portion of our 

presentation. 
 

Å Not all questions asked today will receive an immediate 

response. However, all questions will be answered and posted 

on Grants Gateway and Contract Reporter by June 15, 2018. 
 

Å Attendance is being recorded: 
 

Å If attending in person, please sign the sign-in sheet. 
 

Å Online attendance is automatically recorded. 
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Objectiv es 
 
 
 

 

Å General overview of Office of Children and Family 

Services (OCFS) Division of Juvenile Justice and 

Opportunities for Youth (DJJOY) 
 

Å Overview of the Credible Messenger model 
 

Å Community Connections for Youth (CCFY) 

technical advisors for the initiative 
 

Å Overview of Community Multi-Service Office 

(CMSO) Re-Entry Model 
 

Å Review the Community Credible Messenger 

Initiative (CCMI) model 
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Objectiv es (cont.)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Å Review the target areas for CCMI 
 

 
 

Å Discuss CCMI work-based learning 
 

 
 

Å Primary and subcontractor relationship 
 

 
 

Å MWBE and procurement process 
 

 
 

Å CCMI Request For Proposal (RFP) evaluation 

process 
 

 

Å Questions and answers 
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General  

Overview  of 

OCFS DJJOY 

OCP 
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Office  of  Commu nity  Partn ershi ps CMSO 

Regio nal Map 
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OCFS Youth  Placement  Flow  
 

OCFS Court  Placed Youth F low Chart  

*  JDs enter through OCFS reception center 
*  AO, JO, JO/YO, and RJD enter directly from detention to and OCFS 

secure center 
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Commu nity  Credib le Messenger Initi ative  

(CCMI) 
 

Å Developed to strategically provide identified youth and 

families with the structured support of a Credible Messenger 

and/or Parent Partner while being linked to vocational/ 

employment opportunities. 
 
 
 

Å CCMI will target youth in selected zip codes within the 

Buffalo, Rochester, Mid-Hudson and Long Island regions 

who fit the following profile: 
º Chronically involved in the justice system 

º Disconnected from positive supports 

º Beyond the reach of traditional social services 

º Resistant to change 

º Gang-involved 

º High-risk and high-need 



June 1, 2018 9 

 

 
  

 

Envisioned CCMI Busin ess Model 
 
 
 
 

 

CMSO: Community Multi- 

Service Office 
 
 

PA: Primary Agency 

PM: Project 

Manager 

SC: Sub Contractor/ 

Grass Roots 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CM: Credible Messenger 

PP: Parent Partner 
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Why Now?  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Å Time for a formalized re-entry model that focuses on 

individual needs and risk factors 
 

Å Address recidivism rate as well as returns and revocations 
 

Å Strengthen existing community partnerships and create new 

partnerships at the grass root level that are imbedded in the 

toughest neighborhoods 
 

Å Provide for systems and structures of accountability 
 

Å Raise the Age presents an opportunity to reduce case load 

ratios to provide a more comprehensive ñentry to exitò 

philosophy 
 

 



June 1, 2018 11 

 

 

OCP Re-Entry  and Supervi sion  Princ iples 
 
 

 

Å Youth and family: goal-driven support 
 

Å Safety centered: youth, family, and community 
 

Å Risk and needs responsive with positive youth development 

strategies 
 

Å Continuous family and youth cognitive skill development 
 

Å Community-supported and responsive strategy 

enhancements 
 

Å Transition to natural community supports for sustained 

growth and independence 
 

Å Reduce recidivism and produce data-driven outcomes 
 

Å NY Model-aligned transition and community supervision 
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The New York Model  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Å The NY Model supports the DJJOY philosophy and mission, 

employing evidenced based programs in residential facilities 

and in the community. 
 
 
 
 

Å The NY Model uses a person-centered approach to 

enhance commitment and motivation for change in youth 

and families, and to help youngsters in care define their own 

treatment goals and objectives. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

June 1, 2018 13 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Credible  

Messenger 

Model  and 

Technical 

Advisors  
 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 

 
 

The Credib le Messenger Approa ch 

Presented by Communi ty Conn ecti ons for  Youth  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Rev. Rubén Austr ia 
Founder & Executive Director 

 

José Cruz 
Training Project Manager 

 

Belinda Ramos 
Deputy Director of Training and TA 



 

Learn ing Object ives  
 
 
 

In this webinar, we will: 
 

1. Define the Credible Messenger mentoring 

approach 
 

2. Describe the Credible Messenger program 

model and its successful impact 
 

3. Share the planned implementation timelines for 

2018 
 

4. Share lessons learned and best practices for 

making the initiative successful 



 

Buildi ng Commu nity  Capacity  for  

Juveni le Just ice Reform  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Quest ion: 
 

What  do you  need when  you  go through  a 

cr isis? 
 

 
 
 
 

Quest ion: 
 

What  is  the role  of  the commu nity  in  taking 

responsibili ty for  young people  in  the jus tice 

system?  



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

Introdu ction  

Who is CCFY? 
Community Connections for Youth 

(CCFY) is a New-York based 

nonprofit organization, whose 

mission is to empower grassroots 

faith and neighborhood 

organizations to develop effective 

community-driven alternatives to 

incarceration for youth. 
 

CCFY believes that increasing local 

community capacity to work with 

youth in the justice system is the 

key to reducing youth crime and 

delinquency, and improving long- 

term life outcomes for youth. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

System 
Engagement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community 
Engagement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
System and 
Community 
Partnership 



 

 
 

Intro duct ion  

Why CCFY? 
 
 

SOUTH BRONX COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS 
 

Å An initiative that diverted youth and 

connected them to a network of positive 

adults and activities in their neighborhood 
 

Å The evaluation showed that only 15% of 

enrolled youth were re-arrested; only 5% 

had new charges 
 

Å More than ½ of the youth remained 

engaged beyond their mandate 
 

Å After learning about this model, OCFS 

invited CCFY to support them in creating 

something similar designated NYS regions 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

How Did We Get Here?  
 

 
 

Community Engagement is a philosophy built on a different 

paradigm of how the justice system and the community relate 

to one another. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Punitive 
 
 
 

ά5ƻƛƴƎ Tƻέ 

 

 
 
 
 

Paternalistic 
 
 
 

ά5oing Forέ 

Partnership 
 
 
 

ά5ƻƛƴƎ ²ƛǘƘέ 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Raise the Age:  Cris is & Opport uni ty 
 
 
 
 

New York 
Stateôs 
Raise the 
Age 
Legislation 

 

October 1, 2018: most 16 year olds will be 
processed in the juvenile justice system. 
 
 

 

October 1, 2019: most 17 year olds will 
also be in the juvenile justice system. 

 
 

 

These 16 & 17 
year olds, if 
placed outside 
of NYC, will 
become the 
responsibility 
of OCFS 

 

In 2016, 2042 youth ages 16 & 17 
received dispositions that included jail or 
prison time 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Credible  Messenger  

Approach  
 

 
 
 
 

ñHow the Problem Becomes the Solution.ò 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

The Credible Messenger Appro ach  
 

 
 
 

The history of justice systems has focused on external controls. 

Credible Messenger Approach is about change from within: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

THE INDIVIDUAL 
 

Å a person whoôs 
experienced 
transformation 
mentoring youth 

 

THE 
COMMUNITY 

 

Å people from the 
neighborhood 
leading the 
change 

THE SYSTEM 
 

Å justice system 
professionals changing 
their attitudes and 
approaches to working 
with communities, 
formerly incarcerated 
mentors, and youth 



 

 
 

 
 

Definition  
 
 
 
 

 

Credible Messenger Mentoring for 
youth in the juvenile justice 
system is a transformative process 
through which individuals from 
similar backgrounds, especially 
men and women who were 
themselves justice-involved, 
engage youth in structured and 
intentional relationships that help 
them change their attitudes, 
beliefs and actions. 


